5

DEC 29 2017
WASHING OF STATE
SUPREME COURT

No.

95346-5

COA No. 73713-9-I

In the Supreme court of the state of Washington,

RE, In the matter of Ms. Deoid'e Lea Cunningham appellant

v.

State of Washington, respondent

On review from the superior court for the state of Washington for Skagit county

Petition for Review in the Supreme Court

Karl Ivan Olson POA/REP

Caregiver/petitioner for appellant

2714 J ave , Anacortes WA, 98221

360 420 8065

A. IDENTITY OF THE PETIOTIONER

Deoid'e L. Cunningham, appellant below, a proud developmentally disabled and disabled United States citizen with all equal rights to appeal, review and the provisions of the constitution of the united states, asks this court to accept review of the court of appeals' decision terminating review. See part B.

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Petitioner Deoid'e Cunningham, seeks review of the court of appeals decision entered on October 9th 2017 affirming judicial review and the administrative decision to not reinstate her hearing request date 11/15/2017 related to an alleged default on 5/20/2014 that she did not have good cause for failing to appear despite the fact that she did have several undetected terminal conditions and that this matter was originally dismissed on 3/18/2013 but concealed by HCA and the ALJ, AAG also giving its opinion that the appeal was "misfiled", asking for review to deny her request to reconsider on 11/15/2017 based upon new discovery.

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Deoid'e Cunningham was terminally ill before the hearing but it was unknown, Deoide's constitutional rights were violated. she also had good cause for many reasons to not appear on 5/20/2014

Deoid'e originally and previously defended her eligibility on this issue at hearing on 3/18/2013 (discovery 2016 and 2017) Discovery paragraph 6 (just released by HCA/OAH November 2017 after appeal denied) revealed that the PAN dated 3/4/2013 on DD client eligibility was concealed by DSHS/HCA and the ALJ at hearing on 3/18/2013, Commissioner Mary N. Neel denied the states motion to strike that evidence. New evidence paragraph 6 produces a transcript of that appeal being concealed by the ALJ and HCA attorney on 3/18/2013 violating the 14th amendment right for hearing that day on this issue because HCA was denied the only legal action that could preserve the actions for another date which was a continuance, ALJ Wagner concealed the rulings and did not make a tape record or entry into the records and also lied about the appeal being present filed or misfiled it was still legally filed and dependent on another legal order to save it, this is why it was not available per Commissioner Neels ruling, it was concealed. The appellant was owed due process that day on 3/18/2013 on this issue but that was violated by concealment. Improper notice for due process clause

3.Concealment of issues. RCW 9A.72, RCW 9A.72.010 and RCW 9A.72.150 tampering with physical evidence and interfering with official proceedings were committed by HCA and the ALJ who did act in collusion on 3/18/2013 and continuously through the process

during docket 07-2012-HCA-0109 and 06-2012-HCA-0508, Court of appeals wrongfully ruled/decided on an alleged "misfiled" appeal to which it had every obligation to remand back to superior court for fact finding on if the appeal was properly filed and dismissed on 3/18/2013 under docket 07-2012-HCA-0109. Court of appeals wrongfully refused to remand back to superior court for a full fact finding investigation in both continued benefits and legitimacy of this appeal due to the PAN of 3/4/2013 properly filed under docket 07-2012-HCA-0109 which was not continued. COA should not have concluded that the decision makers in OAH were truthful, honest, impartial, unbiased and created a fair process to this appellant. Concealment of evidence has produced an unfair process. 4. Upholding the constitution is always in the public's best interest and especially for our most vulnerable citizens such as the appellant and her NSA. Newly discovered paragraph 6 is The state of Washington HCA holds a contract against OAH and all the staff, ALJs and review Judges who paid by the agency that is terminating or aggrieving the appellants eligibility. Goldberg V. Kelly 379, US, 254 (1970) pg 255 "the decision maker must be impartial"

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(additional citations may be found in the briefs) chronological accounting from June 2012 through December 2017. On 6/27/2012 HCA (healthcare authority) formerly DSHS (department of social and health services) mailed a PAN (planned action notice) to the appellant Deoid'e Cunningham and her NSA (Necessary Supplemental Accommodation Representative) Mrs Nancy L. Olson notifying her that her waiver services would end on 7/31/2012 unless she appealed by 3/31/2012. The appellant, through her immediate POA (power of attorney) Karl Olson appealed timely, requested continued benefits and authorized with her POA, her attorney in fact Karl Olson to represent her in the matter. The case of docket 07-2012-HCA-0109 was created. On 9/7/2012 the HCA sent another PAN dated 9/7/2012 and immediately terminated the provider Karl Olson alleging that the appellant and Karl were legally married. The appellant timely appealed asking for continued benefits and named Karl Olson as her representative. The Planned actions were consolidated under docket 07-2012-HCA-2012 but after petitioning the OAH from October 2012 through January 2013 to separate the issues, Assistant Chief Justice Mary Radcliff wrote a letter to the appellant confirming her support to separate the issues and order a notice of hearing and assignment of a new and separate ALJ. On 3/4/2013 the HCA (healthcare authority) mailed yet another PAN (planned action notice) dated 3/4/2013 terminating the DD (developmental disabilities) client eligibility of Deoid'e Cunningham on an alleged residency issue effective 4/1/2013 unless an appeal for an administrative hearing was filed by 3/31/2013. NSA (necessary

supplemental accommodation representative) Nancy L. Olson filed an appeal with Olympia OAH (office of administrative hearings) on 3/7/2013 with the assistance of the OAH agent and approval of her supervisor who authorized the appeal to be faxed if completed by 4pm PST that same day while authorizing a waiver of the same day hard copy of that fax. Nancy Olson was informed by OAH to fax the PAN before 4 pm that day and hearing request and keep a copy of the confirmation, do nothing else. Nancy Olson called for help from The appellants case manager Norma Garza and her supervisor Rod Duncan on 3/6/2013 and again on 3/7/2013 asking for a fair hearing and that continued benefits be continued during the appeal, Nancy also asked them for help filing the appeal which HCA is obligated to do by law, neither Garza or Duncan returned the 4 voicemail calls for help so Nancy Olson called OAH who assisted her kindly. The appeal was filed and transferred to the proper venue of the Seattle OAH where it was filed on 3/8/2013 under docket number 07-2012-HCA-0109 where it continued the benefits that can only be maintained if a hearing request on the PAN if first filed with OAH by 3/31/2013, without filing for a hearing timely and without that hearing request challenging the PAN being properly filed under a hearing docket or given its own docket number one is denied continued benefits and a hearing, OAH may add PANs to existing cases at its will or if a party motions to. On 3/18/2013 the appellant appeared and prepared to have her hearing on two issues but HCA withdrew after the judge denied 2 requests to continue the hearing (ALJ concealed the continuance denials from the tape and records) and that representative for the appellant Karl Olson refused to continue the hearing. The judge denied the initial motion by HCA Olson who rejected it with support from Judge Wagner ruling good cause to continue was not found, HCA withdrew and

moved to dismiss the hearing. Judge Wagner did not record or tape record the denials on the continuances (strangely but did conceal the hearing request at hearing on 3/18/2013 along with Rep Kelly Clark whom each had the filed appeal in front of them at that time. According to her case manager Norma Garza the appellant was awarded her assessment based upon dismissal of the case of 2 issues including DD client eligibility with confirmation that the appeal was indeed filed timely and actually part of the hearing that was dismissed at the request of the HCA (completed on 3/20/2013 and 3/24/2013) based upon the dismissals of the 2 actions and awarded 145 MPC (Medicaid personal care hours per month for one year) but 2 months later past the 21 day review deadline and again after the 52 days to appeal for review deadline, HCA, Garza and Duncan all claimed the appeal was never filed with OAH which is now exposed as a false statement, a lie, even at the hearing on 3/18/2013 the HCA and ALJ (administrative law judge) along with case managers Garza and Supervisor Duncan, concealed the filed PAN dated 3/42013 and hearing request because the state was denied its continuances that are required to continue the actions a continuance would have preserved the actions for another date and time, hearing and produced a notice of hearing(. On May 24th 2013, 59 days later Rod Duncan finally wrote a letter claiming the appeal was never received by OAH (Mr Duncan was at the hearing on 3/18/2013 and had a copy of the appeal in hand). Deoide's benefits continued because the case was dismissed but the caregiver was not paid because the OAH was awaiting a ruling from another ALJ on an alleged marriage issue between Deoid'e and Karl, OAH ruled for Deoid'e one year later in September of 2013 that they were not legally married. Deoid'e endured intimidation from the AAG/HCA who tried to scare her out of pursuing the appeal on the 3/4/2013 PAN

but it failed. Mr Duncan's letter, now a letter of premeditation and collusion requested proof of the appeal, not to start another hearing but reinstate benefits he tried to say were not available but already had been provided due to the timely hearing request and dismissal on 3/18/2013 he lied about. For whatever reasons and double jeopardy OAH began a second action on the same PAN dated 3/4/2013 that was concealed from the appellant on 3/18/2013, when NSA Olson responded with proof she was told to hold on to by OAH in march of 2013. The AAG, OAH and HCA continued to conceal the filed evidence that was not discovered until 2016 when it was placed in front of Commissioner Mary N. Neel of court of appeals, HCA objected to discovery but Commissioner Neel denied the motion to strike and entered the proof into evidence. Additional discovery continued and still continues to this day. HCA failed to appear at a hearing on 8/13/2013 on this issue but was never made to answer or appear at a contested FTA (failed to appear) or default hearing as was the appellant. HCA continued to lie and deny access to all the appellant files she was entitled to see before the hearing. In January the ALJ denied continued benefits and concealed the 21 day appeal information by removing it from the order, again a second time that same week after asking for reconsideration the ALJ did not provide the 21 day appeal information required by law, Deoid'e did not appeal to the board of appeals because the 21 day notice was removed by ALJ Boivin. Deoide's witnesses were denied access by telephone as they were out of state and continuances requested by numerous Doctors, counselors and others were all denied. Deoid'e was also faced with appearing in Seattle at 9am on one issue and this issue at 9am in Mount Vernon, but could not appear for either due to at that time mysterious malaise and supleveda (exacerbations to existing illness) Deoid'e telephone ADA

(Americans with disabilities act of 1974 and 1990) accommodations of a telephone hearing with a special time between 11am and 2pm we suddenly denied during the double jeopardy hearing on 5/20/2014. Deoide's eligibility still remained viewable on the ACES (agency client eligibility system) website that was available to all and anyone who needed to see if she filed an appeal and if she was still a DD client. Because Deoid'e did not appeal the denial of continued benefits due to concealment of the appeal deadline notice her exhaustion of remedies failure was blamed on her wrongfully. Deoid'e appealed to judicial review timely but was denied and so was her reconsideration due to the superior court Judge refusal to remand and investigate why the ALJ concealed the 21 day appeal which was discovered in time at judicial review. Judge John Meyer simply coerced Deoid'e into re applying at the request of the AAG who could not explain why the 21 day notice was concealed while Judge Meyer held in his hand the order to deny benefits that had been altered to conceal the 21 day notice deadline. Deoid'e timely appealed to division one and continued to make incredible discoveries that the appeal was timely, concealed and dismissed on 3/18/2013 but division one would not remand (COA opinion dated 10/9/2017) for a full fact finding investigation, the appellant to this date is refused access to her files which she requested in January of 2013 and years before. The case was medically continued for a year and ADA accommodations were reinstated to Deoid'e by OAH per physician's letters. Additional health issues were discovered that were affecting Deoid'e and now have been addressed and therapy initiated. Medication management has changed many medications that affected Deoid'e which did contribute to her illnesses on 5/20/2014 and more discoveries just received In November 2017 confirm concealment, collusion of the PAN dated 3/4/2013 by HCA, AAG and OAH this entire

time. The court of appeals denied Deoide's appeal on 10/9/2017 and her request to reconsider on 11/15/2017. Deoid'e, her NSA, the community of Skagit county and Captain Eric G. Petersen(USN Veteran Retired), the appellants bother in law seek this courts review. As of November 2017 additional paragraph 6 discovery continues including the official transcripts of the 3/18/2013 hearing where the ALJ, Rep Clark, Ms Garza and Mr Duncan all conceal at that hearing that the PAN appeal on 3/4/2013 DD client eligibility was in their hands, The transcript is void evidence claimed by HCA in the service record episodes and some of their emails including evidence the appellant cited properly years ago.

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED.

(1) THE APPELLANT IS TERMINALLY ILL AND IT WAS UNKNOW, THE
APPELLANTS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS UNDER THE 14TH
CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT XVI CLAUSE FOR DUE PROCESS
WERE VIOLATED MULTIPLE TIMES ON MULTIPLE POINTS AND AT
SEVERAL HERINGS ON THE SAME ISSUE, THEREFOR ALSO
VIOLATING THE WASHINGTON STATE CONSTITUTION ART. 1 SEC 2, 3,
10 AND 29

Deoid'e was denied an impartial decision maker demanded by the United States 14th Constitutional Amendment XIV due process clause and the Washington State constitution. On 1/9/2014 and again in the same week on 1/15/2014 the decision maker, ALJ Boivin did commit a gross misdemeanor of law under RCW 9A.72.010(1)(4) and (6) , RCW 9A.72.150(1)(a)(b)(2) and (3) when she intentionally and manually removed/concealed the 21 day appeal notice from her order. The so called impartial decision maker who later denied Deoides request to reinstate her hearing after the 5/20/2014 default did commit under RCW 9A.72.150 (1)(a)(b)(2) and (3) concealment/alter/mutilate/destroyed/removes at an official proceeding and after the proceedings The ALJ physically concealed/removes, alters/ destroys/mutilates the 21 day appeal notice required and preprinted on the forms by RCW 34.05.461" entry of orders", WAC 388-02-0520(a) and RCW 34.05.485(3) so that her order could not be reviewed by a higher court and possibly reversed and that it could be remanded to discover where the original appeal was filed. The ALJ also concealed the date the order becomes final WAC 388-02-0525. This is significant because this ALJ later denies the

appellant reinstatement of her appeal and a continuance before hearing to retain an attorney also a due process right under Goldberg v. Kelly 397 U.S. 254, 262 (1970) and the due process clause amendment. The 14th amendment due process clause demands the right to an attorney an attorney must be allowed but not provided. It is incomprehensible that anyone would think this ALJ could provide a fair and impartial ruling/judgement after she did what she did. She violated Deoides 14th amendment right for due process Goldberg v. Kelly 397 U.S. 254, 262 (1970) & U.S. CONST. amend. XIV for an impartial decision maker who did not follow the rules and laws. Even as Deoid'e was terminally ill and always will be but it was undiscovered before the hearing and not until 2015, 2016 and still in 2017, it did prevent her from making the hearing on 5/20/2014. Deoid'es eligibility was reliant of this impartial ALJ to be fair but this caregiver of nearly 28 years does not feel that any decision maker who commits a gross misdemeanor on multiple orders, refused to follow rules and laws could render an impartial decision later and certainly not to deny counsel, deny reinstatement of an appeal order to the same party she or he aggrieved. Clearly violating the rules as this ALJ did not one time but twice in the same week she denied the appeal rights to Deoid'e and I do not feel she could be impartial after that point in January 2014. In April and May of 2014 the ALJ denied the right to an attorney and then finally denied the request to reinstate the hearing default. This criminal act provides a serious conflict in the ALJ to give her final ruling to be impartial at all, if she would commit this act she could not be fair. Chief Justice Lorraine Lee was notified on 1/10/2014 at the same time as reconsideration was requested but without the 21 day appeal information we depend on it was impossible to know what options were available to the appellant and this did happen

twice that week. There was no error later on as division one contended because the ALJ made a decision to remove the notice that is pre filled on the order forms, even at that since this is a HCA issue the first order is always an initial order which I have just discovered in 2017. Why it was so critical to conceal the original hearing request from a review judge comes later and it is very concerning, it is another due process issue and that it is a serious constitutional significance to the public both in which RAP 13.4(b)(1)(3)and(4) require that the Supreme Court accept this review request. With issues of the US Constitution it applies also to the WASH. CONST. ART. 1 Sec 2, 3, 10 and 29. Cases such as *State* v. *Sieyes*, 225 P.3d 995, 1003 (WASH 2010) and the *State* v. *Manussier*, 921 P.2d 473, 483 -84 (WASH.1996 give the Supreme Court serious considerations into the government's actions to violate the constitution.

(2) THIS ISSUE WAS RESOLVED ON 3/18/2013 @ 11AM UNDER DOCKET 07-2012-HCA-0109 WHEN THE CASE WAS DIMSSED WHEN HCA REFUSED TO PROCEED AND MOTIONED TO DISMISS THE HEARING WHILE THE HCA AND ALJ CONCEALED THE ORIGINAL APPEAL ON THIS ISSUE OF A PAN DATED 3/4/2013 ON DD CLIENT ELIGIBILITY RESIDENCY.

This matter originated in June of 2012 and so began the case of # 07-2012-Hca-0109 to which this PAN dated 3/4/2013 was filed originally, even as the State contends that it was "misfiled" it was still legally submitted by HCA and filed just as the appeal from NSA Nancy Olson was filed under the same docket. If This case were not to be conducted on 3/18/2013 or filed under that docket # an individual "notice of hearing" WAC 388-02-0110(1) would have been mailed to the NSA/appellant with specific information about the date, time and place for the hearing but it does not exist. In fact out of 256 total

pages of evidence 187 pages were dedicated to DD client eligibility PAN dated 3/4/2013 including most importantly the HCA original pre termination notice dated 3/4/2013. The HCA representative kelly Clark requested per WAC 388-02-0380(2) and WAC 388-02-0387(2)that the PAN of 3/4/2013 be consolidated with a PAN dated 6/27/2012 on waiver services termination after a continuance to which the ALJ Leslie A. Wagner (LAW) and the appellant representative Karl Olson only objected to the continuance. Karl olson supported the group hearing of issues but refused to delay the hearing which ALJ Wagner affirmed and denied every motion by HCA to continue but the evidence was allowed and so were the PANs, no order to separate was made WAC 388-02-0385(1). Four days after receiving the appeal which division one confirms timely to continue benefits, for a hearing, OAH must provide a copy to HCA, WAC 388-02-0250 and file it which it did under case 07-2012-HCA-0109 therefore in our opinion it could not be misfiled. ALJ Wagner was to rule at the beginning of the hearing on whether the HCA could show good cause to continue the matter but both motions to continue were denied and the hearing proceeded per WAC 388-02-0280(5) because the continuances were all denied. ALJ Wagner did not follow RCW 34.05.449(4) or WAC 388-02-0350 and tape the proceedings in whole or enter a written order that she denied the continuances. If a continuance would have been granted at hearing, a new notice of hearing WAC 388-02-0280(4) would have been mailed and thus preserving the states allegations of termination against the appellant for another date and time. Without a continuance it is my view that the original allegations of ineligibility are voided and that Deoid'e was owed proper notice of any new termination actions against her such as a new PAN. This is critical because at hearing and only after HCA was denied its continuances and after the ALJ

turned on the tape recorder HCA denied that the appeal for a hearing by NSA Nancy Olson had been received by OAH, which was then supported by ALJ Wagner. Discovery Paragraph 6 in 2016 revealed that HCA and the ALJ concealed that the appeal was present at that hearing with discovery in PDR records obtained by the appellant. HCA and the ALJ lied, concealed it from the official proceedings on 3/18/2013. RCW 9A.72.010(1)(4)(6) RCW 9A.72.080, RCW 9A.72.150(1)(a)(2) were all committed again on this 3/4/2013 PAN on DD client eligibility, the same PAN ALJ Boivin concealed the 21 day appeal notice order on, it was so important to the state and "impartial decision makers" to conceal this due to the facts that I see these issues legally dismissed on 3/18/2013. Official transcripts just received from an Oregon transcribing agency in November of 2017 reveal HCA Representative Kelly A. Clark, HCA hearing representative and ALJ Wagner colluding to conceal the appeal RCW 9A.72.010(1)(4) and (6) that did continue benefits from NSA Olson filed by OAH on 3/8/2013 WAC 388-02-0070(2) and (3) date of filing(2) filing is complete (3). Why we ask was it so important for the ALJ and HCA to work together to conceal the appeal? HCA and division one affirm the appeal was timely to continue her benefits but we ask why did division one not remand back to Superior Court for fact finding? It was willing originally to remand for fact finding as to the question of continued benefits during appeal but reversed its opinion. The lower courts rely on ALJ Boivins decision to deny reinstatement of the appeal default on 5/20/2014 but they do not ask why these so called impartial decision makers conceal evidence or why they alter documents, and how they could depend on any rulings, orders that deny the appellant after those actions. Division one is wrong to decide this issue without further fact finding but again with the constitutional

violations it is likely that they wish the supreme court to decide this even as I feel strongly they failing the constitutional rights of Deoid'e under Goldberg v. Kelly 397 U.S. 254, 262 (1970) & U.S. CONST. amend. XIV & WASH. CONST. ART. 1, SEC 2, 3, and 29. RAP 13.4(b)(1)(3) and (4) includes in my opinion cases such as the State v. Sieyes, 225 P.3d 995, 1003 (WASH 2010) and the State v. Manussier, 921 P.2d 473, 483 -84 (WASH.1996) clearly bolster the supreme courts opinions and actions to defend the US constitutional rights for Washington state citizens under the WA state constitution. The Supreme Court of Washington State stands even more ferociously against any constitutional rights violations when pertaining to Government or State agencies in which this case does take precedence in a public program eligibility action that has serious questions into the constitution of the United States and Washington State RAP 13.4(b)(3). This matter is of the greatest public interest RAP 13.4(b)(4) because it is likely to happen again and many rely on public assistance to survive below poverty which makes this very important for the poor and vulnerable who need it most. When issues such as this come to the supreme Court our public needs justice and also to remind the lower courts that the constitution will not be violated and especially to those who in this public rely upon for daily existence. Goldberg v. Kelly 397 U.S. 254, 262 (1970) who gives us the due process clause for fairness has positively impacted the lives of millions and the past justices did agree (5) that the public interest and their welfare was more important than the states financials which at this time of year in December becomes more visual and that we remind ourselves to those in need.

(3) DEOIDE DID NOT RECEIVE PROPER AND TIMELY NOTICE OF TERMINATION AFTER THESE HEARING MATTERS WERE

CONCEALED, DISMISSED ON 3/18/2013 WHEN HCA WITHDREW.

DEOIDE WAS PRESENT TO DEFEND HER ELIGIBILITY ON BOTH

ISSUES AND REFEUSED TO CONTINUE THE HEARING

When HCA representative Clark and ALJ Wagner colluded to conceal that the appeal was present for the hearing on 3/18/2013 and that it was timely to continue benefits it must be understood that a hearing must be filed for first before benefits can be continued. The ALJ and representative for HCA did perjure themselves by making statements that they knew were not true. After the 21 day initial order and making sure to pass the 52 day review rules timeline HCA Supervisor Rod Duncan mailed a letter to Deoid'e on the 59th day of post dismissal. Mr Duncan claimed that the appeal was never received, although he was at the hearing and had in his hands a filed appeal from NSA Olson and that benefits we unavailable due to the appeal not being filed which we know now as a false statement or a lie. Deoid'e retained her eligibility which remained on the states ACES website and in our opinion she retained her benefits because HCA withdrew while Deoid'e was there to deal with two issues on eligibility. Again, ALJ Wagner and HCA lied and concealed, perjured themselves about the appeal be present but they did not mail a proper and new notice to the NSA to inform her that she needed to send in proof of her appeal again on the same allegations that she was not eligible for a residency issue. Because the hearing on 3/18/2013 was dismissed and continuances denied but concealed from the records, HCA would need to create and take a new PAN with new timelines so that the NSA could appeal and prevent this situation WASH. CONST. ART. 1, SEC 2, 3 10 and 29. U.S. CONST. amend. XIV Due process clause under Goldberg v. Kelly 397 U.S. 254, 262 (1970) requires adequate notice of hearing which in this case again is

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