#### RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON

#### **CLERK'S OFFICE**

Jan 16, 2018, 12:50 pm

RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY

NO. 95346-5

#### SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEIODE LEA CUNNINGHAM,

Appellant,

V.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL & HEALTH SERVICES,

Respondent.

#### ANSWER TO PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

ROBERT W. FERGUSON Attorney General

KATHRYN KRIEGER, WSBA #47037 Assistant Attorney General PO Box 40124 Olympia, WA 98504-0124 (360) 586-6477 OID #91021

> FILED AS ATTACHMENT TO EMAIL



###

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

#### VI. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

RAP 13.4(b) sets out four considerations which govern when the Supreme Court will accept a petition for review of a decision of the Court of Appeals. This Court will grant a petition for discretionary review only if (1) the Court of Appeals decision conflicts with a decision of this Court; (2) the Court of Appeals decision conflicts with a decision of another division of the Court of Appeals; (3) the petition presents a significant federal or state constitutional question; or (4) the petition presents an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by this Court.

Ms. Cunningham, through her non-attorney representative, Mr. Olson, appears to argue that review should be accepted under any or all of RAP 13.4's factors, although she does not identify any published decision of the Court of Appeals with which this decision is in conflict.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Department's Motion for Reconsideration explained how the issue of continued benefits was moot under federal Medicaid law, so that no effective remedy was available on remand.

# A. The Court of Appeals Decision Does Not Conflict with a Decision of the Supreme Court

Ms. Cunningham cites only three cases: State v. Manussier, 129 Wn.2d 652, 921 P.2d 473 (1996) (en banc); State v. Sieyes, 168 Wn.2d 276, 225 P.3d 995 (2010) (en banc); and Goldberg v. Kelly, 397 U.S. 254, 90 S.Ct. 1011, 25 L. Ed. 2d 287 (1970). Manussier and Sieyes are both criminal cases: Manussier deals with alleged constitutional violations of the "three strikes law," and Sieyes deals with alleged constitutional violations related to a juvenile's conviction of firearms possession. Neither of these cases shares any underlying factual similarity to the present case, which is a review under the Administrative Procedure Act (APA), Chapter 34.05 RCW, of an agency's decision related to public benefits.

Indeed, Ms. Cunningham provides no argument about how these cases support her petition for review, unless it is to imply that this Court is required to grant review of any case that alleges a constitutional violation.

See Petition at 12 ("Cases such as [Sieyes] and [Manussier] give the Supreme Court serious considerations into the government's actions to violate the constitution."); 18 ("Both US and WA state cases such as [Sieyes] and [Manussier] give additional scope and authority for this case to be reviewed by the Supreme Court."); and 19 ("I also feel as a caregiver of nearly 28 years in homecare that this Supreme Court is very concerned

for our constitutional rights and the welfare of all who call Washington State Home" (citing Sieyes, Manussier, Goldberg, the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, and Wash. Const. art. 1, sections 2, 3, 10, and 29). These references do nothing more than point out that this Court has previously reviewed cases that allege constitutional violations. Ms. Cunningham has not even alleged that the Court of Appeals has, in her case, made a decision that conflicts with Sieyes or Manussier

Ms. Cunningham does allege that the Court of Appeals decision conflicts with the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Goldberg. Specifically, she argues that the Court of Appeals failed to address the due process protections of the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, as described in Goldberg, and that she was denied an attorney, an impartial decision-maker, and adequate notice of hearing. However, because Ms. Cunningham defaulted on her hearing, she failed to exhaust her administrative remedies with respect to the merits of her case, and the APA precludes judicial review of the merits of any issue other than whether Ms. Cunningham had good cause for missing her hearing. See RCW 34.05.534. See also Citizens for Mount Vernon v. City of Mount Vernon, 133 Wn.2d 861, 866, 947 P.2d 1208 (1997) (court will not review an issue for which an administrative remedy is available where the administrative remedy was not exhausted); Citizens for Clean Air v. City of

Spokane, 114 Wn.2d 20, 33, 785 P.2d 447 (1990) ("failure to exhaust the available administrative remedy makes it unnecessary for us to consider the adequacy of the [challenged Environmental Impact Statement]").

Ms. Cunningham defaulted on her hearing, and the issue before the Court of Appeals was the Department's order denying Ms. Cunningham's request to vacate the Order of Dismissal due to her failure to show good cause for missing her hearing. Ms. Cunningham offers new arguments in her Petition for Review, not previously raised: that she was terminally ill in 2014 when she defaulted (offered without any evidence in the record of a terminal illness); that she was intentionally denied notice of the May 20, 2014, hearing at which she failed to appear (offered without any supporting evidence); that she was denied an impartial decision maker (because of the way OAH is funded); and that she was denied an attorney (even though she never asked for an attorney). None of these arguments raised for the first time here warrant this Court's review.

Nor would any of these arguments merit review had they been properly raised. For example, her argument that she was denied an attorney is without merit because *Goldberg* does not require appointment of counsel for administrative hearings, *see Goldberg*, 397 U.S. at 270, and because Ms. Cunningham not only never requested an attorney, but actually asked the Court of Appeals to grant her an accommodation under GR 33 to retain

the assistance of Mr. Olson in lieu of a licensed attorney, over the Department's objection. *See* Notation Ruling dated September 23, 2015. See Appendix 1.

Similarly, the fact that the Department contracts with OAH to conduct its administrative hearings is not an inherent conflict of interest that violates an appellant's right to due process. OAH exists to provide a more impartial hearing than might otherwise be available if conducted directly by the state agency, and the Administrative Procedure Act clearly contemplates that state agencies may conduct adjudicative proceedings when required by law or constitutional right. *See* RCW 34.05.413.

The only issue properly before the Court is whether Ms. Cunningham failed to demonstrate, at any stage of judicial review, good cause for not appearing at her hearing in 2014. *See* RCW 34.05.570(1)(a). Her efforts to inject new issues and argument should be rejected. Ms. Cunningham has not shown that the decision of the Court of Appeals conflicts with *Sieyes, Manussier, Goldberg*, or any other Supreme Court decision, and RAP 13.4(b)(1) does not support granting her petition for review merely because she now alleges unsupported due process concerns.

///

# B. The Court of Appeals Decision Does Not Conflict with a Published Decision of the Court of Appeals

Ms. Cunningham cites RAP 13.4(b)(2) on page 19 of her Petition for Review, but she cites no decision of the Court of Appeals with which the present decision might conflict. RAP 13.4(b)(2) does not support granting her Petition for Review.

# C. This Case Does Not Involve a Significant Question of Law Under the Washington or U.S. Constitutions

The arguments Ms. Cunningham makes about *Goldberg* are substantially similar to her arguments about the Fourteenth Amendment's due process protections, and should be rejected for the same reasons set out in Section VI.A., above.

Ms. Cunningham also cites the Washington State Constitution, article I, sections 2, 3, 10, and 29, but she fails to actually articulate any question under those provisions that she considered to be "significant." See Petition at 14-15. See State v. Johnson, 179 Wn.2d 534, 558, 315 P.3d 1090 (2014) ("Where a petitioner makes a due process challenge, naked castings into the constitutional seas are not sufficient to command judicial consideration and discussion.") (alterations and internal quotation marks omitted). She refers to the right to adequate notice of hearing and cites the state constitutional provisions alongside the Fourteenth Amendment and Goldberg, Petition at 16 and 18, suggesting that her argument is essentially

the same as her other due process arguments and—like those other arguments—it does not relieve her of her burden under the APA of demonstrating that the agency's dismissal of her hearing was invalid at the time it was dismissed when she failed to demonstrate good cause for missing her hearing. RCW 34.05.570(1)(a)-(b).

Because Ms. Cunningham failed to exhaust her administrative remedies as to any issue other than whether she has shown good cause for failing to appear at her May 20, 2014 hearing, these questions are not properly before this Court on review and do not support granting her petition for review under RAP 13.4(b)(3).

# D. This Case Does Not Involve an Issue of Substantial Public Interest that Should Be Determined by the Supreme Court

Ms. Cunningham argues throughout her petition that this Court must grant review in order to address the alleged abuses and violations by the Department and OAH. Most of Ms. Cunningham's petition focuses on alleged due process violations which the Court of Appeals found to have "no basis in fact." Pet. for Review, Appx. A (Cunningham v. Dep't of Social & Health Servs., No. 73713-9-I, slip op. at 8 (Sept. 23, 2015) (unpublished decision). Further, these alleged violations are not properly before this Court on judicial review under the APA, which is limited to whether Ms. Cunningham demonstrated good cause for failing to appear at her

hearing such that the Department's dismissal was invalid at the time it was taken. RCW 34.05.570(1)(a)-(b). Ms. Cunningham's request for relief goes well beyond the limited appellate authority of a court reviewing an agency action under RCW 34.05.570, and these alleged violations, which are outside the scope of the decision before this Court, do not involve an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court under RAP 13.4(b)(4).

#### VII. CONCLUSION

Ms. Cunningham does not challenge any specific findings of fact or conclusions of law of the Department's final order denying her petition to vacate its Order of Dismissal. She does not argue that the Board erred when it found she lacked good cause for default. Instead, she makes numerous due process arguments, none of which address the sole issue preserved for review: whether to invalidate the Department's decision, pursuant to

///

///

RCW 34.05.570, that there was no good cause for her failing to appear at her hearing on the merits. None of her arguments support granting review under RAP 13.4(b). This Court should deny review.